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  1               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  This is the

  2   July 18th, 2016, meeting of the Town of Kiawah

  3   Island Board of Zoning Appeals.  The Board members

  4   that will hear the case before us today are Ron

  5   Hacker, Charlie Larsen, Ben Farabee, Wendy Kulick,

  6   and I'm Randy Gilmore.

  7               The staff member present is Jenny

  8   Werking.  Dennis Rhoad is the Board's attorney.

  9               Our case ruling for this and any BZA

 10   meeting are available for public review and

 11   inspection during normal business hours at Town

 12   Hall.

 13               At this time I would like to explain

 14   the workings of the BZA.  The Board of Zoning

 15   Appeals is a quasi-judicial body established to

 16   interpret and grant relief from the zoning

 17   ordinance.  The Board of Zoning Appeals has

 18   jurisdiction over three types of cases:  Appeals,

 19   variances, and special exceptions.

 20               Appeals are heard regarding

 21   administrative actions, or decisions by the zoning

 22   administrator or staff.  Variances may be granted

 23   when strict application of the zoning ordinance may

 24   cause unnecessary hardship.

 25               This Board's actions must be based on
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  1   specific standards as contained in the South

  2   Carolina Local Zoning Planning Enabling Act of

  3   1994, and the Town of Kiawah Island Zoning

  4   Ordinance.

  5               Finally, special exceptions allow the

  6   Board to permit use of certain conditions as

  7   contained in the Zoning Ordinance.

  8               A simple majority vote of the quorum

  9   present is required to grant a variance or overturn

 10   a decision of the zoning administrator in an appeal

 11   or to grant a special exception.

 12               Because today's hearing is a public

 13   fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with the

 14   Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina Code

 15   6-29-870.

 16               Fifteen days prior to this hearing an

 17   announcement was printed in the Post and Courier, a

 18   sign was posted on or near the designated property,

 19   and a notice was mailed to the applicant or

 20   representatives, and to residences within 300 feet

 21   of the application, and the interested parties.

 22               Persons, organizations and news media

 23   that request declarations of our meetings have also

 24   been notified.  The Freedom of Information Act does

 25   not require notification to anyone other than the
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  1   applicant and the parties of interest.

  2               Our purpose today is for interested

  3   parties to be heard in order to assist the Board in

  4   granting evidence -- in gathering evidence

  5   pertinent to this case.

  6               If the members of the Board feel the

  7   need for further information to clarify the case,

  8   the Board has the authority to subpoena witnesses.

  9   In addition to your testimony, the Board has been

 10   presented written information submitted by the

 11   staff, and to the staff by the applicant and their

 12   agent for each case.

 13               This information is now considered to

 14   be evidence, and is entered into the permanent

 15   record of this body.  It is assumed that it is

 16   complete, true and accurate.

 17               Also, we have been presented data

 18   assembled by the staff for the purpose of

 19   clarifying the location and the effect on

 20   surrounding property.

 21               Our Board is empowered to approve,

 22   approve with conditions, or to deny requests.  We

 23   are also authorized to defer a case should there be

 24   a need to obtain additional information.

 25               If an applicant's request is approved
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  1   for a special exception, variance or appeal of a

  2   decision of the zoning administrator, they must go

  3   to the Town of Kiawah Island to apply for permits.

  4   Variances and special exceptions granted by the BZA

  5   are valid for 12 months after this meeting.

  6               If an applicant's request is

  7   disapproved, they may wish to appeal the decision

  8   of this Board concerning their case.  Appeals must

  9   be made to the circuit court.

 10               South Carolina Code 6-29-820 states

 11   that the appeal must be filed by the applicant

 12   within 30 days after the decision of the Board is

 13   mailed to them.  Failure to file an appeal within

 14   the time limit described deprives the court of the

 15   jurisdiction of the -- to the hear -- to hear the

 16   matter.

 17               Because this is a quasi-judicial body,

 18   everything said in this meeting must be complete,

 19   true and accurate.  All the information provided to

 20   the BZA is considered evidence, and this Board may

 21   clarify -- may certify contempt to the circuit

 22   court if false statements are made, either in

 23   writing or orally.

 24               Because of this, each person that

 25   wishes to address the Board will be sworn in.  In
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  1   order to expedite this procedure, those wishing to

  2   speak please stand as a group.

  3               (All comply.)

  4               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Mr. Rhoad, would you

  5   please administer the oath.

  6               MR. RHOAD:  Yes.

  7               Raise your right hand.

  8               (All comply.)

  9               MR. RHOAD:  Do you swear to tell the

 10   truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,

 11   so help you God?

 12               (All respond affirmatively.)

 13               MR. RHOAD:  They have been sworn.

 14               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Thank you.

 15               I shall now call the case

 16   BZA-06-16-00138.  That's 67 Falcon Point Road.

 17               The staff will present facts pertinent

 18   to the case.  I shall then call the applicant to

 19   address the case.  The applicant shall please stand

 20   and state their name and current address for the

 21   record before presenting testimony.

 22               I will then ask for all those speaking

 23   either in support or against the case.  And they

 24   shall follow the same procedure, identify

 25   themselves, and are limited to two minutes each.
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  1   The applicant will also have two minutes to rebut.

  2               Thank you.

  3               MS. WERKING:  The applicant, Bill

  4   Marshall of Architrave, LLC, representing the

  5   property owner, Gina Zangrillo, is requesting a

  6   special exception for the placement of an accessory

  7   building, detached accessory dwelling unit/guest

  8   cottage, in front of the principal building at 67

  9   Falcon Point Road, and that's TMS number

 10   265-07-00-024.

 11               The subject property contains

 12   5.46 acres total, and that's 2.13 acres of highland

 13   and 3.33 acres of marsh.  A single family home,

 14   approximately 4,000 square feet, is currently under

 15   construction.  The proposed accessory building is

 16   to be approximately 1,500 square feet.

 17               The subject property and the adjacent

 18   property to the west are Developed Lands located in

 19   the Residential, R-1, Zoning District.  The other

 20   three sides of the property are surrounded by

 21   saltwater wetlands, delineated by the South

 22   Carolina Department of Health and Environmental

 23   Control, SCDHEC, Ocean and Coastal Resource

 24   Mangement, OCRM, Critical Line.

 25               The Town of Kiawah Island Land Use
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  1   Planning and Zoning Ordinance addresses the

  2   placement of accessory buildings in Section 12-104,

  3   accessory uses, buildings/structures, (4),

  4   standards for accessory buildings in residential

  5   districts, which states, in quotes, b. Detached

  6   accessory buildings shall be prohibited from being

  7   placed in front of the principal building and shall

  8   be placed in the rear yard.

  9               Except that a detached accessory use

 10   may be constructed in front of the principal

 11   residence where the residence backs up to a beach,

 12   golf course, lagoon or marsh, and is only permitted

 13   after approval as a Special Exception.  Accessory

 14   buildings will be located within the buildable area

 15   of the lot as delineated by the setback

 16   requirements, end quote.

 17               The Town of Kiawah Island Land Use

 18   Planning and Zoning Ordinance requires a 25-foot

 19   front yard setback, 20-foot side yard setback, and

 20   rear yard setback as shown on the attached

 21   graphics, and 33 percent maximum lot coverage.  The

 22   proposal meets these requirements.

 23               The Kiawah Island Architectural Review

 24   Board issued a Conceptual Review letter on June 8,

 25   2016.
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  1               A site visit was conducted on June 30,

  2   2016, at which time the following determinations

  3   were made regarding the Approval Criteria for

  4   Special Exception as stated in Chapter 12 of the

  5   Town of Kiawah Island Land Use Planning and Zoning

  6   Ordinance, Article II, Division 5,

  7   Section 12-161.(6).

  8               Findings of Fact:  When considering

  9   applications for a special exception, the BZA shall

 10   evaluate the impact of the special use on, and its

 11   compatibility with, surrounding properties and

 12   neighborhoods to ensure the appropriateness of the

 13   use at the particular location.

 14               The BZA shall specifically consider the

 15   extent to which -- and this is Section 12-161.(6)a.

 16               Criteria A:  The proposed use of the

 17   specified location is consistent with the vision

 18   and goals embodied in the Comprehensive Plan:

 19               Staff's Response:  The placement of the

 20   proposed accessory building in front of the

 21   principal -- accessory building in front of the

 22   principal building may be consistent with the

 23   Vision and Goals embodied in the Comprehensive

 24   Plan.

 25               The Town of Kiawah Island Comprehensive
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  1   Plan, Housing Element, Goals states, in quotes, 1.

  2   Encourage development of a diversity of housing

  3   stock, types and styles that meet different needs

  4   of the population. End quote.

  5               The detached accessory building is

  6   proposed to be sited 174 feet from the front

  7   property line, and 298 feet to the principal

  8   building.  As opposed to one massive building, the

  9   detached structure may better blend in with the

 10   surrounding landscape and allows for design

 11   flexibility in order to accommodate existing site

 12   conditions.

 13               Criteria B.  The proposed use is

 14   consistent with the general purpose and intent of

 15   the Zoning Regulations, including any use

 16   conditions or zoning district standards.

 17               Staff's Response:  Section 12-65, R-1,

 18   Residential District, Purpose and Intent of the

 19   Land Use Planning and Zoning Ordinance states, in

 20   quotes, the purpose of the R-1 zoning district is

 21   to promote stable residential neighborhoods

 22   consisting of low density, detached single family

 23   dwellings and surrounding parks, golf courses and

 24   open spaces.

 25               Activities and endeavors which might
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  1   serve to mitigate against this purpose shall be

  2   prohibited or strictly regulated, end quote.

  3               Additionally Section 12-104.4(b)

  4   states, in quotes, detached accessory buildings

  5   shall be prohibited from being placed in front of

  6   the principal building and shall be placed in the

  7   rear yard.

  8               Except that a detached accessory use

  9   may be constructed in front of the principal

 10   residence where the residence backs up to a beach,

 11   golf course, lagoon or marsh, and is only permitted

 12   after approval of the Special Exception, end quote.

 13               Therefore, this request may be

 14   consistent with the general intent of the Ordinance

 15   in order to allow for a varied layout pattern for

 16   this property due to its location adjacent to the

 17   marsh.

 18               Criteria C.  The proposed use is

 19   compatible with and preserves the character and

 20   integrity of adjacent development and

 21   neighborhoods, and includes improvements or

 22   modifications either onsite or within the public

 23   right-of-way to mitigate development-related

 24   adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors,

 25   visual nuisances, or other similar adverse effects
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  1   to adjacent development and neighborhoods.

  2               These improvements or modifications may

  3   include, but shall not be limited to the placement

  4   or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking

  5   areas, bufferyards, and the addition of

  6   landscaping, walls, or both, to ameliorate such

  7   impacts.

  8               Staff's Response:  The applicant's

  9   letter of intent states, in quotes, The proposed

 10   guesthouse is located 174 feet from the front

 11   property line, and is positioned to the north of

 12   the driveway in a buildable portion of the

 13   property.

 14               There is an additional 298 feet from

 15   the guesthouse to the main house.  Due to this

 16   distance, we did not feel that connecting the

 17   accessory structure to the main home with a wall or

 18   covered walkway would have been appropriate or

 19   desired, end quote.

 20               Criteria D:  The proposed use is

 21   compatible with the character of the underlying

 22   zoning district.

 23               Staff's Response:  The proposed use may

 24   be compatible with the character of the

 25   Residential, R-1, Zoning District due to the
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  1   orientation of the principal structure adjacent to

  2   the marsh.

  3               The Ordinance allows for flexibility,

  4   through Special Exception approval, for a detached

  5   accessory building to be sited in front of the

  6   principal residence when the residence backs up to

  7   a beach, marsh, golf course or lagoon on properties

  8   throughout Kiawah Island.

  9               Criteria E:  Where applicable, the

 10   proposed use will be developed in a way that will

 11   preserve and incorporate natural features.

 12               Staff's Response:  The proposed use

 13   will be developed in a way that preserves natural

 14   features.

 15               Criteria F:  The proposed use does not

 16   generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which

 17   will be hazardous or conflict with existing and

 18   anticipated traffic in the neighborhood.

 19               Staff's Response:  The subject property

 20   is within an existing neighborhood.  This proposal

 21   should not conflict with existing traffic in the

 22   neighborhood.

 23               Criteria G:  The proposed use

 24   incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control

 25   devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to
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  1   control traffic flow or divert traffic as may be

  2   needed to reduce or eliminate development-generated

  3   traffic on neighborhood streets.

  4               Staff's Response:  The subject property

  5   is part of an existing neighborhood which addresses

  6   traffic circulation within the development.

  7               Criteria H:  The proposed use

  8   incorporates features to minimize adverse effects,

  9   including visual impacts of the proposed special

 10   use on adjacent properties.

 11               Staff's Response:  The accessory

 12   building should not be readily visible from the

 13   street, thereby minimizing the visual impact of the

 14   proposed use from the adjacent property.

 15               Criteria I:  The proposed use complies

 16   with all other requirements of these Zoning

 17   Regulations applicable to the proposed special

 18   exception use.

 19               Staff's Response:  The proposed use is

 20   in compliance with all other applicable

 21   requirements.

 22               And Criteria J:  The proposed use is

 23   not materially detrimental to the public health,

 24   safety, convenience and welfare.

 25               Staff's Response:  The proposed use may
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  1   not be materially detrimental to the public health,

  2   safety, convenience and welfare because the

  3   accessory building has been oriented onsite to

  4   minimize visual impacts from Falcon Point Road.

  5               Action:  The BZA may approve, approve

  6   with conditions or deny this case based on the

  7   findings of fact unless additional information is

  8   deemed necessary to make an informed decision.

  9               Do y'all have any questions?

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Questions for Jenny?

 11               MR. FARABEE:  I have a question.

 12               The first paragraph says that the

 13   proposed accessory building is to be approximately

 14   1,500 square feet.

 15               Can you be a bit more specific?

 16   Because there's a restriction in the ordinance.

 17               MS. WERKING:  Yes.  I actually think at

 18   the time I wrote this we weren't exactly sure, but

 19   I think it is exactly 1,500.  But it's definitely

 20   not over 1,500.

 21               MR. MARSHALL:  It is proposed to be

 22   1,500 and not 1,501 and change.

 23               MR. FARABEE:  But there are not plans

 24   for those?  You don't have drawings for that?

 25               MR. MARSHALL:  I do have some.



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 17

Clark and Associates Inc.

  1               MR. FARABEE:  Okay.

  2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Hold on.

  3               Any other questions for Jenny?

  4               MS. WERKING:  The only thing I was

  5   going to add is we were talking earlier.  A lot of

  6   the homes that used to be on Kiawah, whether it's

  7   in a developed or undeveloped area, they are

  8   attached by the wall.  And sometimes you can't tell

  9   that from the street unless you look at the plans

 10   or, you know, walk up to the home.

 11               But in this case we talked about that

 12   being an option, having a wall.  It just didn't

 13   make a lot of sense because it wouldn't meet the

 14   intent of the ordinance, the look of the wall.

 15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Jenny, what's the

 16   law about attached -- to be attached someway, wall,

 17   walkway, or whatever you want to call it?

 18               MS. WERKING:  What about the wall?  I'm

 19   sorry.

 20               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  What law is it that

 21   requires them to be attached?

 22               MS. WERKING:  There is not a law, but

 23   the Ordinance says if you don't attach it then you

 24   need a special exception.

 25               Since now it's not attached, that's why
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  1   they need the special exception.

  2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So the reason that

  3   we're here is because it's not attached, right?

  4               MS. WERKING:  Right.  And in this case

  5   attaching it didn't really make as much sense

  6   because of the great distance between the two.

  7   Really the intent of that was so they look like two

  8   structures.  But that wasn't going to work even

  9   with a wall in this case.

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It looks like one

 11   structure.

 12               MS. WERKING:  One, one.  Yes, sorry.

 13   So it would look like -- two structures would

 14   really look like one when they're much closer and

 15   attached.

 16               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question.

 17               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Go ahead.

 18               MR. LARSEN:  Jenny, on the staff

 19   response to the first question, 161.(6)a, the first

 20   paragraph it says, the Town of Kiawah Island

 21   Comprehensive Plan and goal states, encourage

 22   development of a diversity of housing stock, types

 23   and styles that meet different needs of the

 24   population.

 25               If we felt that this did not meet the
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  1   needs of the population, would we -- would that be

  2   a reason to vote against it?  Or is --

  3               MS. WERKING:  Yeah.  I mean, if you

  4   feel like it doesn't meet the goals of the comp

  5   plan, then that could be a reason.  Because it has

  6   to meet all A through I -- J.

  7               MR. LARSEN:  Thank you.

  8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions

  9   for Jenny?

 10               Thank you Jenny.  As always, we will be

 11   asking more questions at the end.

 12               Would the applicant like to make a

 13   presentation, please?

 14               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.

 15               Bill Marshall, representing the

 16   architecture firm, the applicant in this case.

 17   First, real quick, I want to thank y'all for what

 18   you do.  I chair the City's Design Review Board for

 19   all of the new construction in the city of

 20   Charleston off the peninsula.

 21               And it seems like every time that

 22   there's a meeting there's also a kid's violin

 23   rehearsal or a recital or something, you know,

 24   something going on.  So I appreciate y'all being

 25   here.



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 20

Clark and Associates Inc.

  1               I think Jenny did a great job of sort

  2   of helping understand the uniqueness of this lot.

  3   I did run into the next-door neighbor who shares

  4   the property line with this property.  His name is

  5   Darryl Dewberry.

  6               And Darryl actually sent me a note to

  7   pass off that just -- I could explain to him where

  8   the guesthouse is located.  It's 174 feet back from

  9   the front property line.

 10               Jenny, when I met with her after

 11   receiving ARB conceptual approval, we talked about

 12   the idea of an elevated walkway or a six-foot tall

 13   wall to connect the two structures.  That would

 14   have avoided the need for this meeting.

 15               But there's almost a football field,

 16   there's 298 feet of distance between the guesthouse

 17   and the main house on this very unusually long and

 18   narrow piece of property.  And we just felt like

 19   there wasn't really -- A, it would have really

 20   looked strange; B, the expense; and C, it does sort

 21   of fly in the face of the notion of trying to break

 22   down the scale of architectural buildings.

 23               In terms of -- well, I think -- again,

 24   I think the information is out there.  If I can

 25   answer any questions, I would be happy to.
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  1               And thank you all again for being here.

  2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any questions for

  3   this gentleman?

  4               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question.

  5               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.

  6               MR. LARSEN:  When was the construction

  7   on the house to be done?

  8               MR. MARSHALL:  Probably within the next

  9   -- within the last 4 months, 5 months.  We

 10   initially looked at the guesthouse as being a

 11   future project, and then the budget ended up

 12   being --

 13               MR. LARSEN:  You initially looked at it

 14   what?

 15               MR. MARSHALL:  We initially looked at

 16   the guesthouse as being a future project, but the

 17   budget for the main house was actually favorable

 18   for us to proceed with the guesthouse concurrently

 19   with the main house construction.

 20               MR. LARSEN:  So it wasn't an

 21   afterthought, the thought was already there it was

 22   just a question of when?

 23               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.  And the

 24   triggering mechanism was basically trying to get a

 25   conceptual approval from the ARB to initiate this
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  1   process.  And moving forward it didn't make any

  2   sense to, you know, come here before having some

  3   level of approval with the plans that we proposed.

  4               MR. LARSEN:  Was there a thought of

  5   putting it where the current house is and having

  6   the house further up on the property?

  7               MR. MARSHALL:  Not really.  When you

  8   look at the site and the length of the site, there

  9   are two things that made the main house more

 10   desirable to be back there.  Obviously one is the

 11   view considerations, but there's also the vehicular

 12   traffic coming across the bridge from Summer

 13   Islands.

 14               It's one of those bridges that's wood,

 15   it's a wood bridge.  There's a considerable --

 16               MR. LARSEN:  It's loud.

 17               MR. MARSHALL:  Yeah.  -- noise when it

 18   comes across, and also you have the concern of

 19   headlight traffic at night.  It seemed to make

 20   sense to push the main house further away from it.

 21          But I think the site itself is so unusually

 22   shaped that the principal buildable area was the

 23   largest buildable area that we had to work with.

 24   The guesthouse site actually is the next largest

 25   buildable area once you think about vehicle
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  1   circulation and the driveway.  So that sort of

  2   dictated those two sites.

  3               We looked at moving the guesthouse and

  4   connecting it to the main house, but the area of

  5   buildable land narrows up because of the marsh on

  6   both sides.  And also there's a little island of

  7   oak trees in the driveway that we actually all

  8   would like to preserve as part of that.

  9               So it didn't make sense really for it

 10   to be one structure.

 11               MR. LARSEN:  Okay.  Thank you.

 12               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.

 13               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions?

 14               Thank you, sir.

 15               MR. MARSHALL:  Thank you.

 16               Ms. ARB.

 17               MS. LOONEY:  Yes.

 18               I'm Barbara Looney from the Kiawah ARB.

 19   I'm going to add a little bit of information.

 20               One is from the onset of the review

 21   process for the main home, this little area has

 22   been designated the guesthouse area.  And it was

 23   always a future guesthouse is built.  So it's

 24   happening faster than they thought it would.

 25               It's hard to see this lot.  I know
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  1   Jenny had the long plan.  But if you look at this

  2   overall lot, and you might have the plans too, as

  3   Bill was saying, the largest -- the area where the

  4   main house is is where the house -- where the lot

  5   is the widest that would accommodated -- most

  6   naturally accommodate a single family house.

  7               And they also have a very long driveway

  8   now.  And they have a turnaround at that end which

  9   is helpful for fire protection reasons.

 10               So this is an area that has -- as Bill

 11   said, it has a little bit more buildable area, but

 12   it's not as large as where the house actually is.

 13   Because it's kind of naturally where a guesthouse

 14   would go, it just so happens to be in front of the

 15   other house.

 16               So if you are looking -- I guess the

 17   SPEX is the easiest one because it has everything

 18   right here together.  You can see that this area,

 19   which is where the house is, and then this is that

 20   circle driveway.

 21               This is the main house.  And this is

 22   the circle driveway here.  This is the guesthouse,

 23   which is the -- kind of the driveway going by it.

 24   It's just a little nub of buildable area.  And so

 25   this is the natural location for the main house.
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  1               And it's fairly long and linear.  If it

  2   were to continue, they wouldn't be able to have

  3   this drive turnaround if they did put all of this

  4   at one house.

  5               We certainly -- these long lots usually

  6   end up with narrow but long houses.  And obviously

  7   when you're looking at that, the longer it becomes

  8   the more you see it.  So the ARB was very much

  9   appreciative of breaking it into what will appear

 10   as two smaller masses from this direction, which is

 11   Salt Cedar, Falcon Point here, and then down here

 12   is Summer Island.

 13               So do y'all have any other questions?

 14               MR. LARSEN:  Barbara, did they

 15   initially come or have a plan for a more massive

 16   house and you had said, no, we'd like to do it like

 17   -- that's too much --

 18               MS. LOONEY:  For the whole house?  No.

 19   It was always broken up into two units.  And part

 20   of that has to do with trying -- you know, you're

 21   looking at a large house which has a certain amount

 22   of program in it, but having the driveway, having

 23   the guest parking, those kind of hard-scape

 24   requirements preclude too big of a house down

 25   there.
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  1               And they had this area to add a guest

  2   -- like a guest wing.  You know, there is some

  3   buildable area even beyond the house, but it's very

  4   narrow.  It would create a narrow, you know, narrow

  5   but long guesthouse.

  6               So this is the most aesthetically

  7   pleasing location.  And it's still going to be

  8   quite a bit off the road.  It's not even going to

  9   read as if it's -- all the other houses on Falcon

 10   are very close to the road, this won't even be that

 11   close.  I mean, it's still going to be quite a bit

 12   off the road.

 13               MS. KULICK:  Barbara, has the Fire

 14   District seen the plans for this?  And are they

 15   comfortable with being able to get their equipment

 16   in and deal with the turnaround?

 17               MS. LOONEY:  That would be a question

 18   for Bill.  I know we talked about it, but that's

 19   not part of our review process.

 20               MR. MARSHALL:  The driveway and the

 21   back-out area and all of that was approved with the

 22   initial house construction through the Town

 23   permitting process.

 24               CHAIRPERSON GILLMORE:  Bill, has the

 25   fire department looked at it?  The Johns Island



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 27

Clark and Associates Inc.

  1   Fire Department looked?

  2               Because before you can get an occupancy

  3   permit you've got to get the Johns Island Fire

  4   Department to say it's okay.  Or are there trees

  5   coming in?

  6               MR. MARSHALL:  I have not had a meeting

  7   with them, but my assumption is that was something

  8   that was approved at the initial planning part of

  9   it.

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It happens dead

 11   last, by the way.

 12               MR. MARSHALL:  I'm happy to chase it

 13   down.

 14               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It's the last thing

 15   you have to get before you get the occupancy

 16   permit.

 17               MS. LOONEY:  I do want to point out one

 18   thing, though.  Bill has -- the driveway and the

 19   layout of that driveway at the main house are on

 20   paper.  And that was what was -- would have been

 21   reviewed when it was permitted by the Town.

 22               I know a lot of people do at the end

 23   have to take out tree limbs and things like that,

 24   and that's a height thing that wouldn't necessarily

 25   be on paper.



Kiawah Island BZA Meeting 28

Clark and Associates Inc.

  1               Luckily at Falcon Point there's not a

  2   lot of oak trees.  It's a pine lot.

  3               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So there's not a lot

  4   of oaks, trying to save them.

  5               MS. LOONEY:  He's trying to save what

  6   we have, and they're this big (indicating).

  7   They're not the grand oaks that we have.

  8               MR. MARSHALL:  Unfortunately they don't

  9   go over the driveway.

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It does upset a lot

 11   of people when the fellows on the island drive the

 12   trucks down it and they can't make it down there.

 13               MS. KULICK:  Not only that, they have

 14   to have room to be able to --

 15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Drop everything.

 16               MR. MARSHALL:  Well, in this particular

 17   case, because the main house is 500 feet off the

 18   street, even delivery and concrete trucks and

 19   job-site materials and stuff, all of that, the

 20   construction drive I think would accommodate them.

 21               There really aren't any -- I mean, all

 22   of those pine trees probably came up since Hugo.

 23   And oak trees, I don't think that there is an oak

 24   tree out there that's greater than 14 inches in

 25   diameter.  So they don't really have that spread on
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  1   them that they will get over time hopefully.

  2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions

  3   for --

  4               MR. FARABEE:  I want to clarify that.

  5   You said that that was all approved earlier for the

  6   permitting.  Are you talking about the original

  7   permitting of the original house?

  8               MS. LOONEY:  Well, when the original

  9   house came through the review process, there was

 10   always indicated as that area the guesthouse area.

 11   When this came through for the main house, there

 12   was always the designation here of like a little

 13   blob, and written in it was future guesthouse.

 14               And so that was always part of the

 15   conversation.  And actually, that blob was still on

 16   there when it came to permit and we said okay.  We

 17   haven't actually, you know, reviewed -- there was

 18   no plans, at that time there were no plans, let's

 19   take it off.

 20               And then in the process of starting up

 21   construction when they realized that their budget

 22   would allow them to go ahead and do it, and that's

 23   actually the best way to do it while everybody is

 24   mobilized, so then they came in and got conceptual

 25   approval for the guesthouse only.  The house itself
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  1   was approved.

  2               MR. FARABEE:  But going out there I

  3   noticed that the porch of the guesthouse extends

  4   into what the present road is.  Now, are you saying

  5   the present road isn't the present road?

  6               MR. MARSHALL:  In looking at the

  7   stake-out out there onsite, the driveway is

  8   actually shifted to the right.  There is

  9   construction access for the larger trucks and

 10   vehicles and stuff.

 11               I actually talked to the builder about

 12   that.  The driveway actually slides to the south

 13   and is at the -- not in the buffer, but near the

 14   buffer setback.  So the area there, I think it's

 15   20 feet between the tree protection fencing.  But

 16   that portion of the guesthouse would be

 17   revegetated.

 18               MR. FARABEE:  So the present road isn't

 19   the final road?

 20               MR. MARSHALL:  Correct.

 21               MS. LOONEY:  That's the old logging

 22   road.

 23               MR. MARSHALL:  And construction access.

 24               MS. LOONEY:  It's an existing road out

 25   there.
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  1               Any other questions?

  2               MR. LARSEN:  Yes.  Barbara, there's a

  3   viewing platform out farther.  Is there anything

  4   that could be done out there like a gazebo or a

  5   deck or --

  6               MS. LOONEY:  That -- where is the

  7   viewing platform?  It's hard to see on here.

  8               MR. MARSHALL:  Typical to us, it's not

  9   in a buildable area.  It was something that was put

 10   up when the lot was for sale, and it will be coming

 11   down as part of the main project.

 12               MS. LOONEY:  The main house, if you're

 13   looking on your plans.  And again this plan SPEX,

 14   what Bill has dashed in as the red line is the

 15   setback line.

 16               So the house was pushed all the way

 17   back to the building setback.

 18               MR. LARSEN:  So nothing separate, deck

 19   or whatever, could be done out there on the tip?

 20               MS. LOONEY:  No structure could be out

 21   there.  They could have an upgrade patio or, you

 22   know, like a paver patio, but it has to be

 23   pervious.

 24               No structure, no gazebo, no dock house,

 25   pavilion, anything like that, no.
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  1               MR. LARSEN:  Okay.

  2               MR. HACKER:  There is a dock out there.

  3               MS. LOONEY:  Yes.  They have a crabbing

  4   dock that's way out there somewhere.  So there is

  5   obviously going to be a mulch path of something all

  6   the way out there.

  7               And like I said, they can have a patio

  8   or something out there at grade as long as it stays

  9   10 feet off the marsh.

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But that's just a

 11   crabbing dock, it's not a boat dock, right?

 12               MS. LOONEY:  It's not a boat dock,

 13   correct.

 14               It's not a floater per the Town --

 15   whatever, that key dock.

 16               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Further questions?

 17               Thank you, ma'am.

 18               There is no else here to speak.  So

 19   having no one else to speak, I will close this

 20   hearing and we can take a motion.

 21               The letter from the property owners at

 22   66 Falcon Point should be made a part of the

 23   record.

 24               Okay.

 25               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question for
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  1   someone with a legal background before we bring a

  2   motion.

  3               MR. RHOAD:  Okay.

  4               MR. LARSEN:  If we present the motion

  5   to vote to turn this down and it goes 2-2, is that

  6   any different than if we present the motion to have

  7   it accepted and it goes 2-2?

  8               MS. KULICK:  There are five of us.

  9               MR. RHOAD:  You have five.

 10               MR. LARSEN:  Oh.  I thought we only had

 11   four.  I'm sorry.

 12               MR. RHOAD:  No, you've got five.  But

 13   to answer your question, a tie would have been a no

 14   vote.

 15               MR. LARSEN:  So it would make it --

 16               MR. RHOAD:  A tie is a no vote.

 17               MR. LARSEN:  Right.  So if we had four,

 18   it would make a difference.  Okay.  Thank you.

 19               Since now I can count.

 20               MR. RHOAD:  Two-and-a-half to

 21   two-and-a-half is a failed vote.

 22               MR. LARSEN:  Thank you.

 23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Anybody have a

 24   motion?

 25               MR. HACKER:  I move that we approve
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  1   this exception because it meets the criteria of the

  2   exceptions.  I do believe, though, that we're

  3   voting on more than that criteria, that we're

  4   voting on the fact that we're not attaching the

  5   structure to the main building.  I realize that

  6   that seems very impractical; therefore, I feel that

  7   we should pass this.

  8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Is there a second?

  9               MR. LARSEN:  I will second the motion

 10   so we can talk about it.

 11               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Okay.  It's

 12   seconded.

 13               Discussion, ladies and gentlemen?

 14               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  I would just like

 15   to say at the outset I feel a little bit

 16   manipulated here in that while they seem to do all

 17   the planning that went ahead upfront that clearly

 18   says we have only got two places to build stuff,

 19   and we're going to build the big one here and the

 20   little one here, and it seems to be without regard

 21   for the Ordinance about not building in front.

 22               And so as a result it comes to us

 23   because it's only got -- we either vote it down and

 24   then they can't build a house or can't build a

 25   accessory structure, or we approve it with our
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  1   fingers crossed.

  2               I just feel like we have been kind of

  3   manipulated into this position.  We might be in the

  4   same position had they done it differently, but I

  5   just feel like we have been pushed into this

  6   without any options for us.

  7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Now that the house

  8   is under construction --

  9               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  There's nothing we

 10   can do about it.

 11               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  You are correct.

 12   Because you can't pick up a new foundation and put

 13   it in front now.

 14               MR. FARABEE:  No.

 15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So it's an

 16   all-or-nothing type thing for us.

 17               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  But I do recognize

 18   it's a very unique lot.  And that if we come in

 19   with a clean sheet of paper today, we may end up

 20   exactly in the same spot with more knowledge.

 21               So I'm just commenting that I think it

 22   is done backwards, so.

 23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  And I have even a

 24   different concern.  Since we have got one lot with

 25   two houses -- granted, one is only 1,500 square
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  1   feet, a 1,500-square-foot house on Kiawah is worth

  2   a lot of money -- how easy is it to subdivide this

  3   into two pieces of property?

  4               MR. LARSEN:  You can't do it.

  5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Don't say you can't

  6   because you can.  We see things happen on this

  7   island all the time that don't make sense to us.

  8               MR. RHOAD:  But it wouldn't meet the

  9   Town's subdivision of property.

 10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But it's 6 acres,

 11   it's 6 acres of land.  Anyway, I'm just saying.

 12               MR. HACKER:  Well, they can't get the

 13   approval for the reason to subdivide it.  So now

 14   that it's there do you think that they could get

 15   the reason to subdivide it?

 16               The whole idea of an outbuilding and be

 17   minimal of size --

 18               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But this is not an

 19   outbuilding, it's a separate house.  1,500 square

 20   feet may be an outbuilding by Kiawah standards, but

 21   this is a separate house.

 22               MR. RHOAD:  If you think that is a

 23   concern, Jenny, correct me if I'm wrong, but can

 24   the BZA approve a special exception with conditions

 25   that the property not be subdivided?
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  1               Is that an option?

  2               MS. WERKING:  Uh-hum.

  3               MR. RHOAD:  If that is your concern, I

  4   think there's a way to correct that.

  5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  My position is that

  6   we are actually talking about approving a second

  7   house.  This outbuilding is a total independent --

  8   it's going to have everything.  A complete

  9   electrical system, a complete AV system, a complete

 10   sewer system, a complete water system as the other

 11   house.

 12               It's not slayed [sic] together.  It's

 13   going to have multiple -- there's going to be

 14   multiple electric meters out there.  So this is a

 15   separate building.

 16               I know some of the other houses on

 17   Kiawah, we have many of them that have multiple

 18   homes, but the big house is always in front except

 19   a few -- a couple on Surfsong.

 20               MR. LARSEN:  If it is a separate

 21   building, do we have to have a place to park cars?

 22   Can you just park them in front?

 23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  I don't know.  I

 24   haven't seen the plans.

 25               MR. LARSEN:  Is there any -- in terms
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  1   of rules on parking?

  2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Will it be

  3   under-house parking?

  4               MR. FARABEE:  A driveway.

  5               MR. LARSEN:  Because there's a size on

  6   some houses, depending on the footprint you can --

  7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But that all depends

  8   on bedrooms, doesn't it?  It's the number of

  9   bedrooms equal the number of cars, that kind of

 10   stuff.

 11               MS. KULICK:  Number of bedrooms, I

 12   think, plus.

 13               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Two guest spots, I

 14   think.

 15               MS. KULICK:  That was one of my

 16   questions.  I didn't know if the parking for the

 17   guesthouse was required to be incorporated in with

 18   the overall parking for the house, or if it had to

 19   be separate since it was a separate structure.

 20               MS. WERKING:  Yeah.  There's a garage

 21   underneath.

 22               MR. RHOAD:  The accessory dwelling?

 23               MR. LARSEN:  Do you have a plan?

 24               MS. KULICK:  There is a garage

 25   underneath the guesthouse?
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  1               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  There is a garage

  2   underneath the guesthouse.

  3               MR. HACKER:  I think we're reading a

  4   lot into what we're passing.  We say, do we want to

  5   have an accessory building in front of the house or

  6   not?

  7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  That's correct.

  8               MR. HACKER:  And it's not creating a

  9   new building or what it is.  They still have to

 10   meet all the requirements set down by our codes of

 11   whatever they build, and we're not voting on that.

 12               They have to do that and have the ARB

 13   approve of that.  We're not approving what's being

 14   built.  We're just approving whether we put it in

 15   front or not.

 16               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Whether we allow it.

 17               MR. LARSEN:  My initial question for

 18   Jenny on (6)a related to the needs of the

 19   population because I was having trouble on who is

 20   the population?  Is it the owner or is it

 21   neighbors, the community?  Because this is clearly

 22   a want of the owner.

 23               But if Barbara says it's better like

 24   this because it's a less massive house, I guess

 25   that meets the needs of the community.
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  1               But if we are looking at different

  2   needs of the population in terms of types and

  3   styles, it's hard to say that that's a need to have

  4   the guesthouse.

  5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any more discussion?

  6               MS. LOONEY:  Can I say something?

  7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Go ahead.

  8               MS. LOONEY:  To comment on that.  The

  9   ARB does like to look at a diversity of styles, and

 10   also the massing on the home.  We don't want to see

 11   larger masses, and we like to see them broken down.

 12               And this is a case where normally they

 13   would break down.  And they could have this

 14   amenity, this guesthouse if it's connected by a

 15   covered walkway or a wall.

 16               And there are many examples on Rhetts

 17   Bluff, on Surfsong, Flyway that do that.  But given

 18   the compact buildable area, you know, it's a

 19   walkway that's maybe 20 feet, or a wall that's

 20   maybe 40 or 50 feet on some of those lots, but it's

 21   not 300 feet.

 22               In this case, while we understand if

 23   you feel like it's being forced on you, our thought

 24   at the ARB is that looking at the natural

 25   topography of the lot, it makes sense where they
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  1   were proposing the main house and the guesthouse.

  2               And the ARB's position is that having a

  3   400-foot wall, or even worse a 400-foot covered

  4   walkway, is of more detriment to the neighboring

  5   properties and the neighborhood and the island in

  6   general than allowing them to have a fully detached

  7   guesthouse.

  8               The second point is, you know, if they

  9   do subdivide the lot, they'd have to -- as far as

 10   the ARB is concerned, that's up to approval of the

 11   ARB, they would have to meet the setbacks, the lot

 12   coverage and the things like that.

 13               Given how small that buildable area is

 14   as a guesthouse, I don't know that if you created a

 15   flat driveway back to the main house you would

 16   still be able to have a setback from that new

 17   property line.  Does that make sense?

 18               So I think that -- like I said, it's a

 19   very unusual lot.  I just want to point out they'd

 20   have to meet those other setbacks if they ever did

 21   want to subdivide.

 22               MS. KULICK:  Going back to Ron's

 23   original motion, and I know we all had discussion

 24   about the possibility of a condition that if this

 25   were approved that the property could not be
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  1   subdivided.  That wasn't part of your motion

  2   though.

  3               MR. HACKER:  It could be added.

  4               MR. FARABEE:  To Ron's point, you know,

  5   there's a lot about this that other people look at

  6   and approve that we don't need to necessarily get

  7   involved in.  Yet typically we see plans,

  8   elevations, and we haven't seen anything on this

  9   particular house.

 10               And has it been vetted?  Has it been

 11   approved?  Has the ARB seen plans?

 12               MS. LOONEY:  We have conceptually

 13   approved the plans and elevations of the house.

 14               MR. MARSHALL:  To that point, there was

 15   no requirement to submit elevations or drawings and

 16   I apologize for that.

 17               MR. FARABEE:  I understand.  I'm just

 18   saying, typically we see them.  I mean, they're far

 19   enough along so that we're not trying to visualize

 20   what's happening.

 21               MS. LOONEY:  And I didn't bring the

 22   file.  I have -- this is the plan.  It's a

 23   one-story house.  We worked with them in reviewing.

 24               MR. MARSHALL:  I've got something I

 25   brought in to make notes on, but I don't know that
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  1   it matters for y'all.

  2               MR. FARABEE:  It's just a point.  We're

  3   not concerned with a lot of those issues that have

  4   come up in here already, that obviously won't be

  5   resolved today, so.

  6               MS. KULICK:  If Ron's comfortable

  7   adding that condition, that the property could not

  8   be subdivided, I'd like to see that added.

  9               MR. HACKER:  I will withdraw my motion.

 10               MR. RHOAD:  Make an amendment, please.

 11               MR. HACKER:  Will you withdraw the

 12   second, Charlie?

 13               MR. LARSEN:  What?

 14               MR. HACKER:  I'm withdrawing my motion

 15   to make another motion.

 16               Will you withdraw your second?

 17               MR. LARSEN:  Sure.

 18               MR. HACKER:  Okay.  I move that we

 19   approve this exception with the criteria that the

 20   said property can never be subdivided.

 21               MR. RHOAD:  The condition.

 22               MR. HACKER:  The condition of approval

 23   is that the property cannot be subdivided.

 24               MR. LARSEN:  I will second that.

 25               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Discussion on the
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  1   new motion?

  2               Hearing no discussion, I will call the

  3   motion.

  4               Those in favor say aye?

  5               (All respond.)

  6               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Those opposed?

  7               (No response.)

  8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Motion carries

  9   unanimously.

 10               MR. LARSEN:  Question.  We have made a

 11   number of times when there have been -- what do you

 12   call it -- that we put what do we -- a condition.

 13   And I wonder if anybody ever checks conditions that

 14   we put on things five years ago or whatever.

 15               MR. RHOAD:  I'd like to say that the

 16   planning staff --

 17               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It ends up with the

 18   planning staff.

 19               MR. RHOAD:  And I would suggest that

 20   the -- as they received final plat approval, have

 21   the special exceptions then get attached to --

 22               MS. WERKING:  It will be attached

 23   digitally.  It will be in the hard copy of the

 24   file, but then also in the permitting system.  So

 25   if you query the tax mat number or address, you'll
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  1   find it.

  2               MR. RHOAD:  And is it recorded?

  3               MS. WERKING:  No.  But you could.

  4               MR. RHOAD:  I would suggest that we put

  5   it in recordable form and it be recorded at the RMC

  6   office so that anybody who looks at this lot will

  7   see that it's a special exception allowing the

  8   construction of the accessory building in front of

  9   the home, and specifically a condition of not being

 10   subdivided.

 11               MS. WERKING:  Right.

 12               MR. RHOAD:  Then anytime they have

 13   submitted the -- anytime someone in the future that

 14   might have bought this property submits a

 15   subdivision application, looking at the public

 16   record it will be part of the recorded public

 17   record.  That way they're --

 18               MS. WERKING:  And they're required to

 19   look that up before they submit an application.

 20               MR. MARSHALL:  Just so you know,

 21   there's no intent of the existing owner to do that

 22   whatsoever.

 23               MR. RHOAD:  That's fine.

 24               MR. MARSHALL:  But I understand after

 25   we're all gone, it makes sense what you are saying.
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  1               MR. RHOAD:  If you need help from me, I

  2   can help make sure that that gets properly done.

  3   And it would be a burden, if you will, or a

  4   condition that runs with the land permanently.

  5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  If there's nothing

  6   further, we're done.  Thank you.

  7               (The public hearing was concluded at

  8   4:55 PM.)

  9
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            2
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            7   CHARLES LARSEN

            8   BEN FARABEE

            9
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           11   DENNIS RHOAD, ESQUIRE

           12

           13   STAFF MEMBER PRESENT:

           14   JENNY WERKING
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            1               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  This is the

            2   July 18th, 2016, meeting of the Town of Kiawah

            3   Island Board of Zoning Appeals.  The Board members

            4   that will hear the case before us today are Ron

            5   Hacker, Charlie Larsen, Ben Farabee, Wendy Kulick,

            6   and I'm Randy Gilmore.

            7               The staff member present is Jenny

            8   Werking.  Dennis Rhoad is the Board's attorney.

            9               Our case ruling for this and any BZA

           10   meeting are available for public review and

           11   inspection during normal business hours at Town

           12   Hall.

           13               At this time I would like to explain

           14   the workings of the BZA.  The Board of Zoning

           15   Appeals is a quasi-judicial body established to

           16   interpret and grant relief from the zoning

           17   ordinance.  The Board of Zoning Appeals has

           18   jurisdiction over three types of cases:  Appeals,

           19   variances, and special exceptions.

           20               Appeals are heard regarding

           21   administrative actions, or decisions by the zoning

           22   administrator or staff.  Variances may be granted

           23   when strict application of the zoning ordinance may

           24   cause unnecessary hardship.

           25               This Board's actions must be based on
�
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            1   specific standards as contained in the South

            2   Carolina Local Zoning Planning Enabling Act of

            3   1994, and the Town of Kiawah Island Zoning

            4   Ordinance.

            5               Finally, special exceptions allow the

            6   Board to permit use of certain conditions as

            7   contained in the Zoning Ordinance.

            8               A simple majority vote of the quorum

            9   present is required to grant a variance or overturn

           10   a decision of the zoning administrator in an appeal

           11   or to grant a special exception.

           12               Because today's hearing is a public

           13   fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with the

           14   Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina Code

           15   6-29-870.

           16               Fifteen days prior to this hearing an

           17   announcement was printed in the Post and Courier, a

           18   sign was posted on or near the designated property,

           19   and a notice was mailed to the applicant or

           20   representatives, and to residences within 300 feet

           21   of the application, and the interested parties.

           22               Persons, organizations and news media

           23   that request declarations of our meetings have also

           24   been notified.  The Freedom of Information Act does

           25   not require notification to anyone other than the
�
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            1   applicant and the parties of interest.

            2               Our purpose today is for interested

            3   parties to be heard in order to assist the Board in

            4   granting evidence -- in gathering evidence

            5   pertinent to this case.

            6               If the members of the Board feel the

            7   need for further information to clarify the case,

            8   the Board has the authority to subpoena witnesses.

            9   In addition to your testimony, the Board has been

           10   presented written information submitted by the

           11   staff, and to the staff by the applicant and their

           12   agent for each case.

           13               This information is now considered to

           14   be evidence, and is entered into the permanent

           15   record of this body.  It is assumed that it is

           16   complete, true and accurate.

           17               Also, we have been presented data

           18   assembled by the staff for the purpose of

           19   clarifying the location and the effect on

           20   surrounding property.

           21               Our Board is empowered to approve,

           22   approve with conditions, or to deny requests.  We

           23   are also authorized to defer a case should there be

           24   a need to obtain additional information.

           25               If an applicant's request is approved
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            1   for a special exception, variance or appeal of a

            2   decision of the zoning administrator, they must go

            3   to the Town of Kiawah Island to apply for permits.

            4   Variances and special exceptions granted by the BZA

            5   are valid for 12 months after this meeting.

            6               If an applicant's request is

            7   disapproved, they may wish to appeal the decision

            8   of this Board concerning their case.  Appeals must

            9   be made to the circuit court.

           10               South Carolina Code 6-29-820 states

           11   that the appeal must be filed by the applicant

           12   within 30 days after the decision of the Board is

           13   mailed to them.  Failure to file an appeal within

           14   the time limit described deprives the court of the

           15   jurisdiction of the -- to the hear -- to hear the

           16   matter.

           17               Because this is a quasi-judicial body,

           18   everything said in this meeting must be complete,

           19   true and accurate.  All the information provided to

           20   the BZA is considered evidence, and this Board may

           21   clarify -- may certify contempt to the circuit

           22   court if false statements are made, either in

           23   writing or orally.

           24               Because of this, each person that

           25   wishes to address the Board will be sworn in.  In
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            1   order to expedite this procedure, those wishing to

            2   speak please stand as a group.

            3               (All comply.)

            4               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Mr. Rhoad, would you

            5   please administer the oath.

            6               MR. RHOAD:  Yes.

            7               Raise your right hand.

            8               (All comply.)

            9               MR. RHOAD:  Do you swear to tell the

           10   truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,

           11   so help you God?

           12               (All respond affirmatively.)

           13               MR. RHOAD:  They have been sworn.

           14               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Thank you.

           15               I shall now call the case

           16   BZA-06-16-00138.  That's 67 Falcon Point Road.

           17               The staff will present facts pertinent

           18   to the case.  I shall then call the applicant to

           19   address the case.  The applicant shall please stand

           20   and state their name and current address for the

           21   record before presenting testimony.

           22               I will then ask for all those speaking

           23   either in support or against the case.  And they

           24   shall follow the same procedure, identify

           25   themselves, and are limited to two minutes each.
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            1   The applicant will also have two minutes to rebut.

            2               Thank you.

            3               MS. WERKING:  The applicant, Bill

            4   Marshall of Architrave, LLC, representing the

            5   property owner, Gina Zangrillo, is requesting a

            6   special exception for the placement of an accessory

            7   building, detached accessory dwelling unit/guest

            8   cottage, in front of the principal building at 67

            9   Falcon Point Road, and that's TMS number

           10   265-07-00-024.

           11               The subject property contains

           12   5.46 acres total, and that's 2.13 acres of highland

           13   and 3.33 acres of marsh.  A single family home,

           14   approximately 4,000 square feet, is currently under

           15   construction.  The proposed accessory building is

           16   to be approximately 1,500 square feet.

           17               The subject property and the adjacent

           18   property to the west are Developed Lands located in

           19   the Residential, R-1, Zoning District.  The other

           20   three sides of the property are surrounded by

           21   saltwater wetlands, delineated by the South

           22   Carolina Department of Health and Environmental

           23   Control, SCDHEC, Ocean and Coastal Resource

           24   Mangement, OCRM, Critical Line.

           25               The Town of Kiawah Island Land Use
�
                                                                  9



            1   Planning and Zoning Ordinance addresses the

            2   placement of accessory buildings in Section 12-104,

            3   accessory uses, buildings/structures, (4),

            4   standards for accessory buildings in residential

            5   districts, which states, in quotes, b. Detached

            6   accessory buildings shall be prohibited from being

            7   placed in front of the principal building and shall

            8   be placed in the rear yard.

            9               Except that a detached accessory use

           10   may be constructed in front of the principal

           11   residence where the residence backs up to a beach,

           12   golf course, lagoon or marsh, and is only permitted

           13   after approval as a Special Exception.  Accessory

           14   buildings will be located within the buildable area

           15   of the lot as delineated by the setback

           16   requirements, end quote.

           17               The Town of Kiawah Island Land Use

           18   Planning and Zoning Ordinance requires a 25-foot

           19   front yard setback, 20-foot side yard setback, and

           20   rear yard setback as shown on the attached

           21   graphics, and 33 percent maximum lot coverage.  The

           22   proposal meets these requirements.

           23               The Kiawah Island Architectural Review

           24   Board issued a Conceptual Review letter on June 8,

           25   2016.
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            1               A site visit was conducted on June 30,

            2   2016, at which time the following determinations

            3   were made regarding the Approval Criteria for

            4   Special Exception as stated in Chapter 12 of the

            5   Town of Kiawah Island Land Use Planning and Zoning

            6   Ordinance, Article II, Division 5,

            7   Section 12-161.(6).

            8               Findings of Fact:  When considering

            9   applications for a special exception, the BZA shall

           10   evaluate the impact of the special use on, and its

           11   compatibility with, surrounding properties and

           12   neighborhoods to ensure the appropriateness of the

           13   use at the particular location.

           14               The BZA shall specifically consider the

           15   extent to which -- and this is Section 12-161.(6)a.

           16               Criteria A:  The proposed use of the

           17   specified location is consistent with the vision

           18   and goals embodied in the Comprehensive Plan:

           19               Staff's Response:  The placement of the

           20   proposed accessory building in front of the

           21   principal -- accessory building in front of the

           22   principal building may be consistent with the

           23   Vision and Goals embodied in the Comprehensive

           24   Plan.

           25               The Town of Kiawah Island Comprehensive
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            1   Plan, Housing Element, Goals states, in quotes, 1.

            2   Encourage development of a diversity of housing

            3   stock, types and styles that meet different needs

            4   of the population. End quote.

            5               The detached accessory building is

            6   proposed to be sited 174 feet from the front

            7   property line, and 298 feet to the principal

            8   building.  As opposed to one massive building, the

            9   detached structure may better blend in with the

           10   surrounding landscape and allows for design

           11   flexibility in order to accommodate existing site

           12   conditions.

           13               Criteria B.  The proposed use is

           14   consistent with the general purpose and intent of

           15   the Zoning Regulations, including any use

           16   conditions or zoning district standards.

           17               Staff's Response:  Section 12-65, R-1,

           18   Residential District, Purpose and Intent of the

           19   Land Use Planning and Zoning Ordinance states, in

           20   quotes, the purpose of the R-1 zoning district is

           21   to promote stable residential neighborhoods

           22   consisting of low density, detached single family

           23   dwellings and surrounding parks, golf courses and

           24   open spaces.

           25               Activities and endeavors which might
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            1   serve to mitigate against this purpose shall be

            2   prohibited or strictly regulated, end quote.

            3               Additionally Section 12-104.4(b)

            4   states, in quotes, detached accessory buildings

            5   shall be prohibited from being placed in front of

            6   the principal building and shall be placed in the

            7   rear yard.

            8               Except that a detached accessory use

            9   may be constructed in front of the principal

           10   residence where the residence backs up to a beach,

           11   golf course, lagoon or marsh, and is only permitted

           12   after approval of the Special Exception, end quote.

           13               Therefore, this request may be

           14   consistent with the general intent of the Ordinance

           15   in order to allow for a varied layout pattern for

           16   this property due to its location adjacent to the

           17   marsh.

           18               Criteria C.  The proposed use is

           19   compatible with and preserves the character and

           20   integrity of adjacent development and

           21   neighborhoods, and includes improvements or

           22   modifications either onsite or within the public

           23   right-of-way to mitigate development-related

           24   adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors,

           25   visual nuisances, or other similar adverse effects
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            1   to adjacent development and neighborhoods.

            2               These improvements or modifications may

            3   include, but shall not be limited to the placement

            4   or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking

            5   areas, bufferyards, and the addition of

            6   landscaping, walls, or both, to ameliorate such

            7   impacts.

            8               Staff's Response:  The applicant's

            9   letter of intent states, in quotes, The proposed

           10   guesthouse is located 174 feet from the front

           11   property line, and is positioned to the north of

           12   the driveway in a buildable portion of the

           13   property.

           14               There is an additional 298 feet from

           15   the guesthouse to the main house.  Due to this

           16   distance, we did not feel that connecting the

           17   accessory structure to the main home with a wall or

           18   covered walkway would have been appropriate or

           19   desired, end quote.

           20               Criteria D:  The proposed use is

           21   compatible with the character of the underlying

           22   zoning district.

           23               Staff's Response:  The proposed use may

           24   be compatible with the character of the

           25   Residential, R-1, Zoning District due to the
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            1   orientation of the principal structure adjacent to

            2   the marsh.

            3               The Ordinance allows for flexibility,

            4   through Special Exception approval, for a detached

            5   accessory building to be sited in front of the

            6   principal residence when the residence backs up to

            7   a beach, marsh, golf course or lagoon on properties

            8   throughout Kiawah Island.

            9               Criteria E:  Where applicable, the

           10   proposed use will be developed in a way that will

           11   preserve and incorporate natural features.

           12               Staff's Response:  The proposed use

           13   will be developed in a way that preserves natural

           14   features.

           15               Criteria F:  The proposed use does not

           16   generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which

           17   will be hazardous or conflict with existing and

           18   anticipated traffic in the neighborhood.

           19               Staff's Response:  The subject property

           20   is within an existing neighborhood.  This proposal

           21   should not conflict with existing traffic in the

           22   neighborhood.

           23               Criteria G:  The proposed use

           24   incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control

           25   devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to
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            1   control traffic flow or divert traffic as may be

            2   needed to reduce or eliminate development-generated

            3   traffic on neighborhood streets.

            4               Staff's Response:  The subject property

            5   is part of an existing neighborhood which addresses

            6   traffic circulation within the development.

            7               Criteria H:  The proposed use

            8   incorporates features to minimize adverse effects,

            9   including visual impacts of the proposed special

           10   use on adjacent properties.

           11               Staff's Response:  The accessory

           12   building should not be readily visible from the

           13   street, thereby minimizing the visual impact of the

           14   proposed use from the adjacent property.

           15               Criteria I:  The proposed use complies

           16   with all other requirements of these Zoning

           17   Regulations applicable to the proposed special

           18   exception use.

           19               Staff's Response:  The proposed use is

           20   in compliance with all other applicable

           21   requirements.

           22               And Criteria J:  The proposed use is

           23   not materially detrimental to the public health,

           24   safety, convenience and welfare.

           25               Staff's Response:  The proposed use may
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            1   not be materially detrimental to the public health,

            2   safety, convenience and welfare because the

            3   accessory building has been oriented onsite to

            4   minimize visual impacts from Falcon Point Road.

            5               Action:  The BZA may approve, approve

            6   with conditions or deny this case based on the

            7   findings of fact unless additional information is

            8   deemed necessary to make an informed decision.

            9               Do y'all have any questions?

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Questions for Jenny?

           11               MR. FARABEE:  I have a question.

           12               The first paragraph says that the

           13   proposed accessory building is to be approximately

           14   1,500 square feet.

           15               Can you be a bit more specific?

           16   Because there's a restriction in the ordinance.

           17               MS. WERKING:  Yes.  I actually think at

           18   the time I wrote this we weren't exactly sure, but

           19   I think it is exactly 1,500.  But it's definitely

           20   not over 1,500.

           21               MR. MARSHALL:  It is proposed to be

           22   1,500 and not 1,501 and change.

           23               MR. FARABEE:  But there are not plans

           24   for those?  You don't have drawings for that?

           25               MR. MARSHALL:  I do have some.
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            1               MR. FARABEE:  Okay.

            2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Hold on.

            3               Any other questions for Jenny?

            4               MS. WERKING:  The only thing I was

            5   going to add is we were talking earlier.  A lot of

            6   the homes that used to be on Kiawah, whether it's

            7   in a developed or undeveloped area, they are

            8   attached by the wall.  And sometimes you can't tell

            9   that from the street unless you look at the plans

           10   or, you know, walk up to the home.

           11               But in this case we talked about that

           12   being an option, having a wall.  It just didn't

           13   make a lot of sense because it wouldn't meet the

           14   intent of the ordinance, the look of the wall.

           15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Jenny, what's the

           16   law about attached -- to be attached someway, wall,

           17   walkway, or whatever you want to call it?

           18               MS. WERKING:  What about the wall?  I'm

           19   sorry.

           20               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  What law is it that

           21   requires them to be attached?

           22               MS. WERKING:  There is not a law, but

           23   the Ordinance says if you don't attach it then you

           24   need a special exception.

           25               Since now it's not attached, that's why
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            1   they need the special exception.

            2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So the reason that

            3   we're here is because it's not attached, right?

            4               MS. WERKING:  Right.  And in this case

            5   attaching it didn't really make as much sense

            6   because of the great distance between the two.

            7   Really the intent of that was so they look like two

            8   structures.  But that wasn't going to work even

            9   with a wall in this case.

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It looks like one

           11   structure.

           12               MS. WERKING:  One, one.  Yes, sorry.

           13   So it would look like -- two structures would

           14   really look like one when they're much closer and

           15   attached.

           16               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question.

           17               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Go ahead.

           18               MR. LARSEN:  Jenny, on the staff

           19   response to the first question, 161.(6)a, the first

           20   paragraph it says, the Town of Kiawah Island

           21   Comprehensive Plan and goal states, encourage

           22   development of a diversity of housing stock, types

           23   and styles that meet different needs of the

           24   population.

           25               If we felt that this did not meet the
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            1   needs of the population, would we -- would that be

            2   a reason to vote against it?  Or is --

            3               MS. WERKING:  Yeah.  I mean, if you

            4   feel like it doesn't meet the goals of the comp

            5   plan, then that could be a reason.  Because it has

            6   to meet all A through I -- J.

            7               MR. LARSEN:  Thank you.

            8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions

            9   for Jenny?

           10               Thank you Jenny.  As always, we will be

           11   asking more questions at the end.

           12               Would the applicant like to make a

           13   presentation, please?

           14               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.

           15               Bill Marshall, representing the

           16   architecture firm, the applicant in this case.

           17   First, real quick, I want to thank y'all for what

           18   you do.  I chair the City's Design Review Board for

           19   all of the new construction in the city of

           20   Charleston off the peninsula.

           21               And it seems like every time that

           22   there's a meeting there's also a kid's violin

           23   rehearsal or a recital or something, you know,

           24   something going on.  So I appreciate y'all being

           25   here.
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            1               I think Jenny did a great job of sort

            2   of helping understand the uniqueness of this lot.

            3   I did run into the next-door neighbor who shares

            4   the property line with this property.  His name is

            5   Darryl Dewberry.

            6               And Darryl actually sent me a note to

            7   pass off that just -- I could explain to him where

            8   the guesthouse is located.  It's 174 feet back from

            9   the front property line.

           10               Jenny, when I met with her after

           11   receiving ARB conceptual approval, we talked about

           12   the idea of an elevated walkway or a six-foot tall

           13   wall to connect the two structures.  That would

           14   have avoided the need for this meeting.

           15               But there's almost a football field,

           16   there's 298 feet of distance between the guesthouse

           17   and the main house on this very unusually long and

           18   narrow piece of property.  And we just felt like

           19   there wasn't really -- A, it would have really

           20   looked strange; B, the expense; and C, it does sort

           21   of fly in the face of the notion of trying to break

           22   down the scale of architectural buildings.

           23               In terms of -- well, I think -- again,

           24   I think the information is out there.  If I can

           25   answer any questions, I would be happy to.
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            1               And thank you all again for being here.

            2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any questions for

            3   this gentleman?

            4               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question.

            5               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.

            6               MR. LARSEN:  When was the construction

            7   on the house to be done?

            8               MR. MARSHALL:  Probably within the next

            9   -- within the last 4 months, 5 months.  We

           10   initially looked at the guesthouse as being a

           11   future project, and then the budget ended up

           12   being --

           13               MR. LARSEN:  You initially looked at it

           14   what?

           15               MR. MARSHALL:  We initially looked at

           16   the guesthouse as being a future project, but the

           17   budget for the main house was actually favorable

           18   for us to proceed with the guesthouse concurrently

           19   with the main house construction.

           20               MR. LARSEN:  So it wasn't an

           21   afterthought, the thought was already there it was

           22   just a question of when?

           23               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.  And the

           24   triggering mechanism was basically trying to get a

           25   conceptual approval from the ARB to initiate this
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            1   process.  And moving forward it didn't make any

            2   sense to, you know, come here before having some

            3   level of approval with the plans that we proposed.

            4               MR. LARSEN:  Was there a thought of

            5   putting it where the current house is and having

            6   the house further up on the property?

            7               MR. MARSHALL:  Not really.  When you

            8   look at the site and the length of the site, there

            9   are two things that made the main house more

           10   desirable to be back there.  Obviously one is the

           11   view considerations, but there's also the vehicular

           12   traffic coming across the bridge from Summer

           13   Islands.

           14               It's one of those bridges that's wood,

           15   it's a wood bridge.  There's a considerable --

           16               MR. LARSEN:  It's loud.

           17               MR. MARSHALL:  Yeah.  -- noise when it

           18   comes across, and also you have the concern of

           19   headlight traffic at night.  It seemed to make

           20   sense to push the main house further away from it.

           21          But I think the site itself is so unusually

           22   shaped that the principal buildable area was the

           23   largest buildable area that we had to work with.

           24   The guesthouse site actually is the next largest

           25   buildable area once you think about vehicle
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            1   circulation and the driveway.  So that sort of

            2   dictated those two sites.

            3               We looked at moving the guesthouse and

            4   connecting it to the main house, but the area of

            5   buildable land narrows up because of the marsh on

            6   both sides.  And also there's a little island of

            7   oak trees in the driveway that we actually all

            8   would like to preserve as part of that.

            9               So it didn't make sense really for it

           10   to be one structure.

           11               MR. LARSEN:  Okay.  Thank you.

           12               MR. MARSHALL:  Yes, sir.

           13               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions?

           14               Thank you, sir.

           15               MR. MARSHALL:  Thank you.

           16               Ms. ARB.

           17               MS. LOONEY:  Yes.

           18               I'm Barbara Looney from the Kiawah ARB.

           19   I'm going to add a little bit of information.

           20               One is from the onset of the review

           21   process for the main home, this little area has

           22   been designated the guesthouse area.  And it was

           23   always a future guesthouse is built.  So it's

           24   happening faster than they thought it would.

           25               It's hard to see this lot.  I know
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            1   Jenny had the long plan.  But if you look at this

            2   overall lot, and you might have the plans too, as

            3   Bill was saying, the largest -- the area where the

            4   main house is is where the house -- where the lot

            5   is the widest that would accommodated -- most

            6   naturally accommodate a single family house.

            7               And they also have a very long driveway

            8   now.  And they have a turnaround at that end which

            9   is helpful for fire protection reasons.

           10               So this is an area that has -- as Bill

           11   said, it has a little bit more buildable area, but

           12   it's not as large as where the house actually is.

           13   Because it's kind of naturally where a guesthouse

           14   would go, it just so happens to be in front of the

           15   other house.

           16               So if you are looking -- I guess the

           17   SPEX is the easiest one because it has everything

           18   right here together.  You can see that this area,

           19   which is where the house is, and then this is that

           20   circle driveway.

           21               This is the main house.  And this is

           22   the circle driveway here.  This is the guesthouse,

           23   which is the -- kind of the driveway going by it.

           24   It's just a little nub of buildable area.  And so

           25   this is the natural location for the main house.
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            1               And it's fairly long and linear.  If it

            2   were to continue, they wouldn't be able to have

            3   this drive turnaround if they did put all of this

            4   at one house.

            5               We certainly -- these long lots usually

            6   end up with narrow but long houses.  And obviously

            7   when you're looking at that, the longer it becomes

            8   the more you see it.  So the ARB was very much

            9   appreciative of breaking it into what will appear

           10   as two smaller masses from this direction, which is

           11   Salt Cedar, Falcon Point here, and then down here

           12   is Summer Island.

           13               So do y'all have any other questions?

           14               MR. LARSEN:  Barbara, did they

           15   initially come or have a plan for a more massive

           16   house and you had said, no, we'd like to do it like

           17   -- that's too much --

           18               MS. LOONEY:  For the whole house?  No.

           19   It was always broken up into two units.  And part

           20   of that has to do with trying -- you know, you're

           21   looking at a large house which has a certain amount

           22   of program in it, but having the driveway, having

           23   the guest parking, those kind of hard-scape

           24   requirements preclude too big of a house down

           25   there.
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            1               And they had this area to add a guest

            2   -- like a guest wing.  You know, there is some

            3   buildable area even beyond the house, but it's very

            4   narrow.  It would create a narrow, you know, narrow

            5   but long guesthouse.

            6               So this is the most aesthetically

            7   pleasing location.  And it's still going to be

            8   quite a bit off the road.  It's not even going to

            9   read as if it's -- all the other houses on Falcon

           10   are very close to the road, this won't even be that

           11   close.  I mean, it's still going to be quite a bit

           12   off the road.

           13               MS. KULICK:  Barbara, has the Fire

           14   District seen the plans for this?  And are they

           15   comfortable with being able to get their equipment

           16   in and deal with the turnaround?

           17               MS. LOONEY:  That would be a question

           18   for Bill.  I know we talked about it, but that's

           19   not part of our review process.

           20               MR. MARSHALL:  The driveway and the

           21   back-out area and all of that was approved with the

           22   initial house construction through the Town

           23   permitting process.

           24               CHAIRPERSON GILLMORE:  Bill, has the

           25   fire department looked at it?  The Johns Island
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            1   Fire Department looked?

            2               Because before you can get an occupancy

            3   permit you've got to get the Johns Island Fire

            4   Department to say it's okay.  Or are there trees

            5   coming in?

            6               MR. MARSHALL:  I have not had a meeting

            7   with them, but my assumption is that was something

            8   that was approved at the initial planning part of

            9   it.

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It happens dead

           11   last, by the way.

           12               MR. MARSHALL:  I'm happy to chase it

           13   down.

           14               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It's the last thing

           15   you have to get before you get the occupancy

           16   permit.

           17               MS. LOONEY:  I do want to point out one

           18   thing, though.  Bill has -- the driveway and the

           19   layout of that driveway at the main house are on

           20   paper.  And that was what was -- would have been

           21   reviewed when it was permitted by the Town.

           22               I know a lot of people do at the end

           23   have to take out tree limbs and things like that,

           24   and that's a height thing that wouldn't necessarily

           25   be on paper.
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            1               Luckily at Falcon Point there's not a

            2   lot of oak trees.  It's a pine lot.

            3               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So there's not a lot

            4   of oaks, trying to save them.

            5               MS. LOONEY:  He's trying to save what

            6   we have, and they're this big (indicating).

            7   They're not the grand oaks that we have.

            8               MR. MARSHALL:  Unfortunately they don't

            9   go over the driveway.

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It does upset a lot

           11   of people when the fellows on the island drive the

           12   trucks down it and they can't make it down there.

           13               MS. KULICK:  Not only that, they have

           14   to have room to be able to --

           15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Drop everything.

           16               MR. MARSHALL:  Well, in this particular

           17   case, because the main house is 500 feet off the

           18   street, even delivery and concrete trucks and

           19   job-site materials and stuff, all of that, the

           20   construction drive I think would accommodate them.

           21               There really aren't any -- I mean, all

           22   of those pine trees probably came up since Hugo.

           23   And oak trees, I don't think that there is an oak

           24   tree out there that's greater than 14 inches in

           25   diameter.  So they don't really have that spread on
�
                                                                  29



            1   them that they will get over time hopefully.

            2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any other questions

            3   for --

            4               MR. FARABEE:  I want to clarify that.

            5   You said that that was all approved earlier for the

            6   permitting.  Are you talking about the original

            7   permitting of the original house?

            8               MS. LOONEY:  Well, when the original

            9   house came through the review process, there was

           10   always indicated as that area the guesthouse area.

           11   When this came through for the main house, there

           12   was always the designation here of like a little

           13   blob, and written in it was future guesthouse.

           14               And so that was always part of the

           15   conversation.  And actually, that blob was still on

           16   there when it came to permit and we said okay.  We

           17   haven't actually, you know, reviewed -- there was

           18   no plans, at that time there were no plans, let's

           19   take it off.

           20               And then in the process of starting up

           21   construction when they realized that their budget

           22   would allow them to go ahead and do it, and that's

           23   actually the best way to do it while everybody is

           24   mobilized, so then they came in and got conceptual

           25   approval for the guesthouse only.  The house itself
�
                                                                  30



            1   was approved.

            2               MR. FARABEE:  But going out there I

            3   noticed that the porch of the guesthouse extends

            4   into what the present road is.  Now, are you saying

            5   the present road isn't the present road?

            6               MR. MARSHALL:  In looking at the

            7   stake-out out there onsite, the driveway is

            8   actually shifted to the right.  There is

            9   construction access for the larger trucks and

           10   vehicles and stuff.

           11               I actually talked to the builder about

           12   that.  The driveway actually slides to the south

           13   and is at the -- not in the buffer, but near the

           14   buffer setback.  So the area there, I think it's

           15   20 feet between the tree protection fencing.  But

           16   that portion of the guesthouse would be

           17   revegetated.

           18               MR. FARABEE:  So the present road isn't

           19   the final road?

           20               MR. MARSHALL:  Correct.

           21               MS. LOONEY:  That's the old logging

           22   road.

           23               MR. MARSHALL:  And construction access.

           24               MS. LOONEY:  It's an existing road out

           25   there.
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            1               Any other questions?

            2               MR. LARSEN:  Yes.  Barbara, there's a

            3   viewing platform out farther.  Is there anything

            4   that could be done out there like a gazebo or a

            5   deck or --

            6               MS. LOONEY:  That -- where is the

            7   viewing platform?  It's hard to see on here.

            8               MR. MARSHALL:  Typical to us, it's not

            9   in a buildable area.  It was something that was put

           10   up when the lot was for sale, and it will be coming

           11   down as part of the main project.

           12               MS. LOONEY:  The main house, if you're

           13   looking on your plans.  And again this plan SPEX,

           14   what Bill has dashed in as the red line is the

           15   setback line.

           16               So the house was pushed all the way

           17   back to the building setback.

           18               MR. LARSEN:  So nothing separate, deck

           19   or whatever, could be done out there on the tip?

           20               MS. LOONEY:  No structure could be out

           21   there.  They could have an upgrade patio or, you

           22   know, like a paver patio, but it has to be

           23   pervious.

           24               No structure, no gazebo, no dock house,

           25   pavilion, anything like that, no.
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            1               MR. LARSEN:  Okay.

            2               MR. HACKER:  There is a dock out there.

            3               MS. LOONEY:  Yes.  They have a crabbing

            4   dock that's way out there somewhere.  So there is

            5   obviously going to be a mulch path of something all

            6   the way out there.

            7               And like I said, they can have a patio

            8   or something out there at grade as long as it stays

            9   10 feet off the marsh.

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But that's just a

           11   crabbing dock, it's not a boat dock, right?

           12               MS. LOONEY:  It's not a boat dock,

           13   correct.

           14               It's not a floater per the Town --

           15   whatever, that key dock.

           16               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Further questions?

           17               Thank you, ma'am.

           18               There is no else here to speak.  So

           19   having no one else to speak, I will close this

           20   hearing and we can take a motion.

           21               The letter from the property owners at

           22   66 Falcon Point should be made a part of the

           23   record.

           24               Okay.

           25               MR. LARSEN:  I have a question for
�
                                                                  33



            1   someone with a legal background before we bring a

            2   motion.

            3               MR. RHOAD:  Okay.

            4               MR. LARSEN:  If we present the motion

            5   to vote to turn this down and it goes 2-2, is that

            6   any different than if we present the motion to have

            7   it accepted and it goes 2-2?

            8               MS. KULICK:  There are five of us.

            9               MR. RHOAD:  You have five.

           10               MR. LARSEN:  Oh.  I thought we only had

           11   four.  I'm sorry.

           12               MR. RHOAD:  No, you've got five.  But

           13   to answer your question, a tie would have been a no

           14   vote.

           15               MR. LARSEN:  So it would make it --

           16               MR. RHOAD:  A tie is a no vote.

           17               MR. LARSEN:  Right.  So if we had four,

           18   it would make a difference.  Okay.  Thank you.

           19               Since now I can count.

           20               MR. RHOAD:  Two-and-a-half to

           21   two-and-a-half is a failed vote.

           22               MR. LARSEN:  Thank you.

           23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Anybody have a

           24   motion?

           25               MR. HACKER:  I move that we approve
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            1   this exception because it meets the criteria of the

            2   exceptions.  I do believe, though, that we're

            3   voting on more than that criteria, that we're

            4   voting on the fact that we're not attaching the

            5   structure to the main building.  I realize that

            6   that seems very impractical; therefore, I feel that

            7   we should pass this.

            8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Is there a second?

            9               MR. LARSEN:  I will second the motion

           10   so we can talk about it.

           11               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Okay.  It's

           12   seconded.

           13               Discussion, ladies and gentlemen?

           14               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  I would just like

           15   to say at the outset I feel a little bit

           16   manipulated here in that while they seem to do all

           17   the planning that went ahead upfront that clearly

           18   says we have only got two places to build stuff,

           19   and we're going to build the big one here and the

           20   little one here, and it seems to be without regard

           21   for the Ordinance about not building in front.

           22               And so as a result it comes to us

           23   because it's only got -- we either vote it down and

           24   then they can't build a house or can't build a

           25   accessory structure, or we approve it with our
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            1   fingers crossed.

            2               I just feel like we have been kind of

            3   manipulated into this position.  We might be in the

            4   same position had they done it differently, but I

            5   just feel like we have been pushed into this

            6   without any options for us.

            7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Now that the house

            8   is under construction --

            9               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  There's nothing we

           10   can do about it.

           11               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  You are correct.

           12   Because you can't pick up a new foundation and put

           13   it in front now.

           14               MR. FARABEE:  No.

           15               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  So it's an

           16   all-or-nothing type thing for us.

           17               MR. FARABEE:  Yeah.  But I do recognize

           18   it's a very unique lot.  And that if we come in

           19   with a clean sheet of paper today, we may end up

           20   exactly in the same spot with more knowledge.

           21               So I'm just commenting that I think it

           22   is done backwards, so.

           23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  And I have even a

           24   different concern.  Since we have got one lot with

           25   two houses -- granted, one is only 1,500 square
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            1   feet, a 1,500-square-foot house on Kiawah is worth

            2   a lot of money -- how easy is it to subdivide this

            3   into two pieces of property?

            4               MR. LARSEN:  You can't do it.

            5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Don't say you can't

            6   because you can.  We see things happen on this

            7   island all the time that don't make sense to us.

            8               MR. RHOAD:  But it wouldn't meet the

            9   Town's subdivision of property.

           10               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But it's 6 acres,

           11   it's 6 acres of land.  Anyway, I'm just saying.

           12               MR. HACKER:  Well, they can't get the

           13   approval for the reason to subdivide it.  So now

           14   that it's there do you think that they could get

           15   the reason to subdivide it?

           16               The whole idea of an outbuilding and be

           17   minimal of size --

           18               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But this is not an

           19   outbuilding, it's a separate house.  1,500 square

           20   feet may be an outbuilding by Kiawah standards, but

           21   this is a separate house.

           22               MR. RHOAD:  If you think that is a

           23   concern, Jenny, correct me if I'm wrong, but can

           24   the BZA approve a special exception with conditions

           25   that the property not be subdivided?
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            1               Is that an option?

            2               MS. WERKING:  Uh-hum.

            3               MR. RHOAD:  If that is your concern, I

            4   think there's a way to correct that.

            5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  My position is that

            6   we are actually talking about approving a second

            7   house.  This outbuilding is a total independent --

            8   it's going to have everything.  A complete

            9   electrical system, a complete AV system, a complete

           10   sewer system, a complete water system as the other

           11   house.

           12               It's not slayed [sic] together.  It's

           13   going to have multiple -- there's going to be

           14   multiple electric meters out there.  So this is a

           15   separate building.

           16               I know some of the other houses on

           17   Kiawah, we have many of them that have multiple

           18   homes, but the big house is always in front except

           19   a few -- a couple on Surfsong.

           20               MR. LARSEN:  If it is a separate

           21   building, do we have to have a place to park cars?

           22   Can you just park them in front?

           23               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  I don't know.  I

           24   haven't seen the plans.

           25               MR. LARSEN:  Is there any -- in terms
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            1   of rules on parking?

            2               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Will it be

            3   under-house parking?

            4               MR. FARABEE:  A driveway.

            5               MR. LARSEN:  Because there's a size on

            6   some houses, depending on the footprint you can --

            7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  But that all depends

            8   on bedrooms, doesn't it?  It's the number of

            9   bedrooms equal the number of cars, that kind of

           10   stuff.

           11               MS. KULICK:  Number of bedrooms, I

           12   think, plus.

           13               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Two guest spots, I

           14   think.

           15               MS. KULICK:  That was one of my

           16   questions.  I didn't know if the parking for the

           17   guesthouse was required to be incorporated in with

           18   the overall parking for the house, or if it had to

           19   be separate since it was a separate structure.

           20               MS. WERKING:  Yeah.  There's a garage

           21   underneath.

           22               MR. RHOAD:  The accessory dwelling?

           23               MR. LARSEN:  Do you have a plan?

           24               MS. KULICK:  There is a garage

           25   underneath the guesthouse?
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            1               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  There is a garage

            2   underneath the guesthouse.

            3               MR. HACKER:  I think we're reading a

            4   lot into what we're passing.  We say, do we want to

            5   have an accessory building in front of the house or

            6   not?

            7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  That's correct.

            8               MR. HACKER:  And it's not creating a

            9   new building or what it is.  They still have to

           10   meet all the requirements set down by our codes of

           11   whatever they build, and we're not voting on that.

           12               They have to do that and have the ARB

           13   approve of that.  We're not approving what's being

           14   built.  We're just approving whether we put it in

           15   front or not.

           16               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Whether we allow it.

           17               MR. LARSEN:  My initial question for

           18   Jenny on (6)a related to the needs of the

           19   population because I was having trouble on who is

           20   the population?  Is it the owner or is it

           21   neighbors, the community?  Because this is clearly

           22   a want of the owner.

           23               But if Barbara says it's better like

           24   this because it's a less massive house, I guess

           25   that meets the needs of the community.
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            1               But if we are looking at different

            2   needs of the population in terms of types and

            3   styles, it's hard to say that that's a need to have

            4   the guesthouse.

            5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Any more discussion?

            6               MS. LOONEY:  Can I say something?

            7               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Go ahead.

            8               MS. LOONEY:  To comment on that.  The

            9   ARB does like to look at a diversity of styles, and

           10   also the massing on the home.  We don't want to see

           11   larger masses, and we like to see them broken down.

           12               And this is a case where normally they

           13   would break down.  And they could have this

           14   amenity, this guesthouse if it's connected by a

           15   covered walkway or a wall.

           16               And there are many examples on Rhetts

           17   Bluff, on Surfsong, Flyway that do that.  But given

           18   the compact buildable area, you know, it's a

           19   walkway that's maybe 20 feet, or a wall that's

           20   maybe 40 or 50 feet on some of those lots, but it's

           21   not 300 feet.

           22               In this case, while we understand if

           23   you feel like it's being forced on you, our thought

           24   at the ARB is that looking at the natural

           25   topography of the lot, it makes sense where they
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            1   were proposing the main house and the guesthouse.

            2               And the ARB's position is that having a

            3   400-foot wall, or even worse a 400-foot covered

            4   walkway, is of more detriment to the neighboring

            5   properties and the neighborhood and the island in

            6   general than allowing them to have a fully detached

            7   guesthouse.

            8               The second point is, you know, if they

            9   do subdivide the lot, they'd have to -- as far as

           10   the ARB is concerned, that's up to approval of the

           11   ARB, they would have to meet the setbacks, the lot

           12   coverage and the things like that.

           13               Given how small that buildable area is

           14   as a guesthouse, I don't know that if you created a

           15   flat driveway back to the main house you would

           16   still be able to have a setback from that new

           17   property line.  Does that make sense?

           18               So I think that -- like I said, it's a

           19   very unusual lot.  I just want to point out they'd

           20   have to meet those other setbacks if they ever did

           21   want to subdivide.

           22               MS. KULICK:  Going back to Ron's

           23   original motion, and I know we all had discussion

           24   about the possibility of a condition that if this

           25   were approved that the property could not be
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            1   subdivided.  That wasn't part of your motion

            2   though.

            3               MR. HACKER:  It could be added.

            4               MR. FARABEE:  To Ron's point, you know,

            5   there's a lot about this that other people look at

            6   and approve that we don't need to necessarily get

            7   involved in.  Yet typically we see plans,

            8   elevations, and we haven't seen anything on this

            9   particular house.

           10               And has it been vetted?  Has it been

           11   approved?  Has the ARB seen plans?

           12               MS. LOONEY:  We have conceptually

           13   approved the plans and elevations of the house.

           14               MR. MARSHALL:  To that point, there was

           15   no requirement to submit elevations or drawings and

           16   I apologize for that.

           17               MR. FARABEE:  I understand.  I'm just

           18   saying, typically we see them.  I mean, they're far

           19   enough along so that we're not trying to visualize

           20   what's happening.

           21               MS. LOONEY:  And I didn't bring the

           22   file.  I have -- this is the plan.  It's a

           23   one-story house.  We worked with them in reviewing.

           24               MR. MARSHALL:  I've got something I

           25   brought in to make notes on, but I don't know that
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            1   it matters for y'all.

            2               MR. FARABEE:  It's just a point.  We're

            3   not concerned with a lot of those issues that have

            4   come up in here already, that obviously won't be

            5   resolved today, so.

            6               MS. KULICK:  If Ron's comfortable

            7   adding that condition, that the property could not

            8   be subdivided, I'd like to see that added.

            9               MR. HACKER:  I will withdraw my motion.

           10               MR. RHOAD:  Make an amendment, please.

           11               MR. HACKER:  Will you withdraw the

           12   second, Charlie?

           13               MR. LARSEN:  What?

           14               MR. HACKER:  I'm withdrawing my motion

           15   to make another motion.

           16               Will you withdraw your second?

           17               MR. LARSEN:  Sure.

           18               MR. HACKER:  Okay.  I move that we

           19   approve this exception with the criteria that the

           20   said property can never be subdivided.

           21               MR. RHOAD:  The condition.

           22               MR. HACKER:  The condition of approval

           23   is that the property cannot be subdivided.

           24               MR. LARSEN:  I will second that.

           25               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Discussion on the
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            1   new motion?

            2               Hearing no discussion, I will call the

            3   motion.

            4               Those in favor say aye?

            5               (All respond.)

            6               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Those opposed?

            7               (No response.)

            8               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  Motion carries

            9   unanimously.

           10               MR. LARSEN:  Question.  We have made a

           11   number of times when there have been -- what do you

           12   call it -- that we put what do we -- a condition.

           13   And I wonder if anybody ever checks conditions that

           14   we put on things five years ago or whatever.

           15               MR. RHOAD:  I'd like to say that the

           16   planning staff --

           17               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  It ends up with the

           18   planning staff.

           19               MR. RHOAD:  And I would suggest that

           20   the -- as they received final plat approval, have

           21   the special exceptions then get attached to --

           22               MS. WERKING:  It will be attached

           23   digitally.  It will be in the hard copy of the

           24   file, but then also in the permitting system.  So

           25   if you query the tax mat number or address, you'll
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            1   find it.

            2               MR. RHOAD:  And is it recorded?

            3               MS. WERKING:  No.  But you could.

            4               MR. RHOAD:  I would suggest that we put

            5   it in recordable form and it be recorded at the RMC

            6   office so that anybody who looks at this lot will

            7   see that it's a special exception allowing the

            8   construction of the accessory building in front of

            9   the home, and specifically a condition of not being

           10   subdivided.

           11               MS. WERKING:  Right.

           12               MR. RHOAD:  Then anytime they have

           13   submitted the -- anytime someone in the future that

           14   might have bought this property submits a

           15   subdivision application, looking at the public

           16   record it will be part of the recorded public

           17   record.  That way they're --

           18               MS. WERKING:  And they're required to

           19   look that up before they submit an application.

           20               MR. MARSHALL:  Just so you know,

           21   there's no intent of the existing owner to do that

           22   whatsoever.

           23               MR. RHOAD:  That's fine.

           24               MR. MARSHALL:  But I understand after

           25   we're all gone, it makes sense what you are saying.
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            1               MR. RHOAD:  If you need help from me, I

            2   can help make sure that that gets properly done.

            3   And it would be a burden, if you will, or a

            4   condition that runs with the land permanently.

            5               CHAIRMAN GILMORE:  If there's nothing

            6   further, we're done.  Thank you.

            7               (The public hearing was concluded at

            8   4:55 PM.)
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